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THE THOMAS POYNTON IVES HOUSE
by Jorx Hutorins Capy, FALA*

Tuomas Poynroxn Ives was born in Beverly, Massachusetts, in
1769. He entered the house of Brown and Benson in Providence as
a clerk, in 1782, and ten years later married Nicholas Brown's
daughter, Hope. He then became a partner in the firm, which later
took the name of Brown and Ives.

Mr. Ives acquired a two-acre tract on Power Street to the east of
the estate on which John Brown, brother of Nicholas, had erected
a mansion in 1786. Both estates were a part of the original home lot
of William Wickenden to whom it was allotted in 1640. According
to tradition Thomas Ives sent to England for plans of a house,
which came designated as “‘a Georgian manor house with paved
court yard, stable and coach house.” The street number at first was
37 Power and was changed to 66 when the highway was re-numbered
in 1870. The estate is now bounded by Brown Street on the west
and Charles Field Street on the north, these highwavs having been
laid out after the house was erected.

The house stands on the southwest portion of the lot. North of it
is a courtyard flanked on the north and cast by a two-story L-shaped
outbulding, doubtless erected when the house was built and sub-
stantially unchanged since that time. The north wing was originally
used for a stable, harness room and coach house, and the east wing
for a laundry and servants’ quarters. The brick fireplace and adja-
cent brick boiler in the laundry and the wide floor boards and small
paned windows in the second story are so typically New England
that a local planner would seem to have had a hand in the design.
Farther north, on the Charles Field Street border, is the original
cow barn. The easterly part of the lot is a landscaped arca. A

#*Mr. Cady was architect of the 1954 restoration,
1



2 The Thomas Poynton Ives House | January

granite wall, topped by an iron fence, is built along the sidewalk on
the westerly half of the lot on Power Street and along Brown Street,
and a high brick wall curves from the southeast corner of the house
to Power Street. The remainder of the estate is enclosed by a wall
of brick and stone.

The house, as originally erected, was a square block, 55 feet wide
and 57 feet deep, three stories high, with a flat hipped roof. The
walls were built of imported brick, laid in Flemish bond (except
American running bond on the rear) and rising from a marble
underpinning. Three of the chimneys are in the outside walls, two
on the west and onc on the east: the fourth chimney, which has
back-to-back fireplaces in the library and smoking room, as well as
in the rooms above, is set back a few feet from the wall. The win-
dows, symmetrically spaced, have marble caps and sills, the splayed
caps having double keys except in the third story and on the rear
where they are plain. The front entrance has side lights and an
clliptical top light over which, in the second story, is a window of
the Palladian type. The main cornice is decorated with modillions
and is crowned by an eaves balustrade. The plain rectangular form
of the house is relieved by a round bay on the east and a semi-circular
entrance porch on the south, the latter in the Corinthian order sur-
mounted by a classic balustrade. The side bay, now rising full height
and crowned by an extension of the main cornice and balustrade,
originally was only one story in height.

The plan is large and imposing in scale with a wide central hall
extending through the house and divided into front and rear sections
by a partition with a doorway behind the stairs. The stairway, start-
ing with a straight run, spirals at the rear to the second story, and
the spiral from the second to the third story is free-standing. All of
the rooms have fireplaces. The wood finish throughout the house is
simple and delicately moulded, reflecting a departure from the
baroque trend of the late eighteenth century. The principal rooms
have elaborate plaster cornices.

Some data relative to the construction of the house have recently
been revealed in Brown and Ives records now in the custody of John
Carter Brown Library. A page of a ledger for the year 1803 with
the caption “*Memo of Rum to be chd. T. P. Ives del'd Mr. Ormsbee
for the Labourers & Masons &c & includes entrics from August 5
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to September 30 showing a total of 1374 half pints distributed. It
had long been a custom to hand out rum to workmen at significant
stages of construction and Mr. Ives appears to have been particularly
generous. The entries are of value both in determining the period
of the erection of the house and in identifying Caleb Ormsbee as
chief of construction. He was one of the leading master builders in
Providence at that time as well as a self-trained architect and is
reputed to have designed and erected in 1794 the second meeting
house of the First Congregational Society which was destroyved by
fire in 1815. With no architect’s representative on the spot it is
quite likely that Ormsbee himself was responsible for a considerable
amount of the detail work of the house and possibly for the design
of the out-buildings, or he may have delegated this work to John
Holden Greene who later rose to fame as an architect and was ap-
prenticed to Ormsbee at that time. Subsequent entries for rum were
as follows: May 8 to September 29, 1804, 3755 half pints; February
14-15, 1805, 9 half pints; and June 19 to December 26, 1805,
2495 half pints. All in all the records show a total of 7633 half
pints, or 477 gallons!

In addition to the days of the rum handout there must have been
periods of alcoholic drought. The dates above noted indicate that
excavations were made and foundations laid in 1803, the walls and
roof erected in 1804, and the interior work done in 1805.

Aside from the expenses for rum, the earliest surviving document
with respect to the house is a proposal made by James B. Walcout
dated February 13, 1804 to furnish certain building materials. This
proposal included 24 window caps with double keys and 26 window
caps without keys. All of these are now accounted for except five
unkeyed windows climinated when the north wing was built. Wal-
cott’s proposal also included marble underpinning as follows: 350
running feet of stone 16 inches wide and 160 to 180 feet of stone
eight inches wide, all intended for three sides of the house. The
present underpinnings do not entirely accord with this schedule,
They are composed of two courses of marble, the lower ten inches
high above grade and the upper 16 inches high, with small window
openings on the south and west, a total length of 136 feet exclusive
of the front curved porch and the east curved bay.

The curved bay was doubtless original, but was at first only one
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story high, as evidenced by the slightly different color of brick on
the upper stories. The date of the enlargement is not known, but
was before 1884. The curved Corinthian entrance porch was either
original or an early addition. The vestibule was added in 1884.

Thomas P. Ives wrote his agent, Amos T. Jenckes, in Italy No-
vember 26, 1804, asking him to purchase in Leghorn four marble
chimney pieces and about 600 feet in length of marble slabs four
inches thick and 14 inches wide. Of the chimney pieces one was
to be *handsome and neatly ornamental for a drawing room,” one
“somewhat ornamental,” and the others “plainly wrought.” Ship-
ments of the four chimney picces and slabs were made from Leghorn
in May, 1805. One of these, described in the invoice as of “statuary
marble, made according to the models, 36 inches high and 42 inches
in breadth™ (referring to size of fireplace opening) is evidently the
one now in the parlor. Mr. Jenckes wrote Mr, Ives from New York
July 22, 1805, that he had, at his own initiative, shipped from Leg-
horn 22 plain chimney pieces and various other items noted, for
Mr. Ives’ use or for sale in New York, of which Mr. Ives selected
four chimney pieces, four alabaster lamps and onc alabaster oval
lamp cord. The disposition of the marble slabs is unknown. Evi-
dently they were not used on the main block as the walls had been
erected prior to their arrival.

The original plumbing system was probably confined to the
kitchen sink, supplied with water from a well by means of a hand
pump and drained into a cesspool. Candles and oil lamps provided
illumination; a crystal candelabrum still hangs from the parlor ceil-
ing. The rooms were heated from the fireplaces. It may be supposed
that these facilities were improved from time to time as other types
became available. The manufacture of gas commenced in Provi-
dence in 1848 and the Ives house was doubtless piped for gas lighting
a few vears later. Central heating was probably installed at that time,
as well as the built-in range still standing in the kitchen. Plumbers
were advertising the installation of water closets, bath tabs and
“lifting pumps™ in the 1850’s, in which period one or more bath
rooms may have been installed with water first pumped from the
well, and piped from the city water system when Pawtuxet reservoir
was put in use in the early seventies. Street illumination by electricity
started in 1882 and domestic electric lighting was available by the
early nineties.
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Thomas P. Ives died in 1835 and his wife Hope survived until
1855. She left the estate to her son Moses B. Ives who had married
Anne Allen Dorr in 1833. He died in 1857, shortly after moving into
the house, having bequeathed a life interest in the property to his
wife Anne, to go to his son Captain Thomas P. Ives on her death.
Captain Ives died before his mother, however, and left his interest
to her and to his sister Hope Brown Ives who married Henry G,
Russell in 1864. At Mrs. Moses Ives' death in 1884 Mrs. Russell
became sole owner.

The annals of the Thomas P. Ives house are closely linked with
those of the neighboring house at 10 Brown Street which Mrs. Ives
built for her son Moses about 1835. Following its vacancy by Moses
Ives about 1856 it was occupied by his nephew Thomas P. 1. God-
dard until 1870. In that year Mrs. Russell took possession and re-
modeled the house. The main entrance, originally on Charles Field
Street (No. 22) was shifted to the opposite side, facing a driveway
entered from Brown Street ( No. 10). Bay windows and a wide piazza
were added to the main block and the east wing was enlarged. After
the Russells had moved out, about 1886, the house was occupied for
a few vears by Mr. and Mrs. William G. Roelker. In 1898 Mrs.
Russell gave the estate to the Episcopal Diocese of Rhode Island
for a bishop's residence.

Certain alterations and additions were made to the Thomas P.
Ives house after the original owner's death. In the seventies, during
Mrs. Moses Ives’ occupancy, the dining room and the library were
claborately redecorated by Marcott of New York. The original pine
finish and the marble mantels were removed. The library was altered
to provide an oval west wall, lined with book shelves, matching the
curve of the east bay, and the room was finished in black walnut.
The dining room was done over in mahogany, including heavy win-
dow and door finish with bracketed caps rising nearly to the plaster
cornice. a five-foot wainscot, and a mantel and over-mantel extend-
ing from window to window, carried to the height of the window
caps.

In 1884 Mrs. Russell added a service wing and terraces. A draw-
ing is preserved with the caption “Sketch showing proposed addi-
tion to the house corner of Power & Brown Sts., Stone and Carpenter,
Architects, 65 Westminster St., April 21, 1884." The sketch has
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been identified as the work of Edmund R. Willson who shortly after-
wards became a member of the firm. It shows the present north
wing, about 25 feet square and three stories high and the adjoining
piazza on the east, with Corinthian columns and a cornice balustrade,
providing a rear entry to the main hallway. The sketch also shows
the addition of the vestibule in the front entrance porch and various
interior changes. Indicated roughly in pencil are the lines of the
present garden terrace. Later in the century an electric elevator was
installed, north of the stairway, and the walls of the rear part of the
main hall were lined with wood paneling.

Mrs. Russell, whose death in 1909 came a few vears after that of
her husband, bequeathed the property to her cousins, Robert H. L.
Goddard and William Ames. R. H. Ives Goddard, Jr., took title to
the estate in 1910 and has since lived there with his wife Marearet
Hazard Goddard. During their occupancy an over-mantel of
psecudo-Adam design was erected in the parlor and alterations were
made bv Jackson, Robertson and Adams, architects, including
French doors in the library and wainscot paneling in the smoking
room. More recently, in 1954, the dining room was restared to an
approximation of its original status.

In this latter project, executed by Frank N, Gustafson and Sons,
building contractors, the removal of the mahogany finish and mantel,
the tapestry-tvpe wall hangings, and the wall laths and plaster re-
vealed certain aspects of the original construction. The two interior
partitions were built of brick, the north one of which was interlaced
with studding in the form of half-timber work. The outside brick
walls were lined with rough boards, Plaster was applied directly to
the brick on the partitions and to laths nailed to the boarding on the
outside walls. The original fireplace had been entirely reconstructed
and no clue remained as to its original status. The wall hangings
had been attached to cleats, nailed to the plaster, and had been lifted
from time to time for the installation of gas pipes and electric cable
between the cleats. In the reconstruction work the walls were
re-covered with plaster, laid on wire laths.

In planning the restoration the original wood details of the parlor
wainscot and door and window trim were closely [ollowed. The
former fireplace, with its yellow marble facing and hearth, was re-
tained and a wood mantel built around it in adaptation of the work
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of Samuel MclIntire of Salem. This was surmounted by an over-
mantel with carved mouldings to frame a portrait. The original
moulded plaster cornice and the original wood floor boards were
preserved. The mahogany doors and window shutters were retained,
but a section of louvres in each set of shutters was replaced by a
panel. The doorways were crowned with caps, decorated in flat
relief, originally over doors in the central hall. The Victorian electric
wall brackets were replaced by fixtures furnished by Edward F.
Caldwell of New York.

The wood finish was painted white, except for the mahogany
finish of the doors, window stools and wainscot cap. The floors were
given a natural finish and the plaster walls were painted a dark
blue-gray.

On August 31, when the work was nearing completion, Rhode
Island was visited by a hurricane which felled a large branch of an
elm tree standing southwest of the house, carrying away the chimney
top over the dining room fireplace and severely damaging the wall
and fence along Brown Street. When the tree was later sawed down
its age was estimated at 144 vears, indicating that it was planted
very shortly after the house was completed.

The outward aspect of the original house is practically unchanged
after standing nearly a century and a half, and the additions are in
architectural conformity. The same may be said of the interior
finish with the single exception of the library where the rather ex-
travagant Victorian style provides a sharp, but not inharmonious,
contrast with the simpler motives of the other rooms. In many re-
spects the Thomas Poynton Ives house is the finest example of the
Early Republican period of architecture in Providence.

THE NEWPORT GAZETTE
TORY NEWSSHEET
by Ravrn Apams Browx

Contributing Editor, American Heritage

[concluded from October, 1954, v. 13, no. 4, page 108]
The Desirability of Peace

In what would appear to be a conscious attempt to convince the
rebels of the futility of their cause and the desirability of peace, there
are three types of propaganda employed by The Newport Gazette.
These include stories to the effect that the people are growing weary
of the war; attempts to convince the rebels of the futility of their
cause, and efforts to persuade the masses of the Whigs that their
leaders are ineflicient and selfish.

On January 16, 1777, John Howe states that a Boston paper
which had arrived in Newport admitted that “their [rebel] Affairs
begin to wear a Melancholy Aspect.”™ In the same issue are New
York items taken from a paper of December 30th which report large
numbers of people coming into the city, laying down their arms and
receiving a full pardon.™ In February, Editor Howe reports frequent
stories of the hardships suffered by the rebel population, with more
and more objection to the war, and an especial difficulty among the
farmers due to the shortage of salt with which to preserve their
meat.” In March there is the report of dissatisfaction among the
rebels over their heavy taxes,"

On May 15, 1777, John Howe reprints from the North American
Gazette an appeal by a refugee “to those who are INFLUENCED
by the Congress,” in which the writer asks the people to realize their
situation and return to the allegiance of their King.™ On August 14th
“G.G.” addresses “Gentlemen Rebels™ pointing out their tremendous
losses, growing weakness and disension, and closing with this
admonition: **

As to my Part, I can conceive your Difficulty: you must either put
up with such Gentry [ie. leaders] as you have, or none: and a worse
Dilemma still is, you must either perish or submit, Such Minds as
yours, so warmed and clarified with enthusiastic Fire, so intelligent in

84Ibid,, January 16, 1777. D7Ibid., March 12, 1778.
9aTbid, 8Ihid., May 15, 1777.
¥lbid., February 6, 1777. YIbid., August 14, [1778].
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the Art of true Policy, which consists in Lh{- entire free Agency of every
Individual, so justly determined to resign every solid Benefit for a

vague Term, which cannot exist, according to the Idea you annex to
it: I sav, such Minds, in such a Case, will presrnﬂ\ delenmnc which
Side they will incline to, leaving the rising Generation in Astonish-
ment at the Effects of Avance and Superstition,

A vear later the entire front page is devoted to an editorial on “The
Power of England.” pointing out the absurdity of the colonies™ posi-
linn.llhl

A third type of propaganda, that dealing with the attempt to
weaken the influence which the leaders held over the masses of Whigs,
was used much more by The Newport Gazette than were the types
just mentioned. On April 10, 1777, John Howe prints a two-column
article by “A.A.” in which the author attacks the leaders of the
colonial cause, Franklin especially, for their attempts to delude the
multitude.”" Franklin, the article argues, had gone to France not
to get the assistance of that nation, which he was smart enough to
know was impossible. Rather he had gone so that he could live in
luxury on the money he had taken from his deluded followers.'™
Much of the hard currency had been sent out of the colonies, main-
tains this writer, and in a short time all of the leaders will go to Europe
to remain there the rest of their lives."™ In the next July there is an
article on the scandalous inadequacy of the rebel medical service,
closing with the comment that “such a . . . Collection of Fools and
Rogues, have never made their appearance in history.” %

On February 19, 1778, Howe reprints from a Philadelphia paper
of January 3d, an extract on the deplorable condition of the Amer-
icans, compared with their fine condition before this trouble began.
It opens with this attack on the rebel leaders: “The pains taken by
the leaders in the present rebellion, with a view solely to the promo-
tion of their own ambition, and the establishment of their intolerable
tyranny, is not to be paralleled in any history.” ' Three months
later a London dispatch reports that the cargo of a rebel prize re-
cently taken to Gibraltar by an English ship contained “an elegant
CROWN, intended it was said for Mr. Washington.” """ A weck
later the editor of the Gazette prefaces a reprint from a Boston paper

100 hid,, August 27, [1778], W04 bid,, July 17, 1777,
Wrhid., April 10, 1777, W51 bid. . Frbtuar\ 19, 1778,
W2 L hid, 108 hid., May 21, I??
T,
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in regard to the new taxes, with an attack on the rebel leaders of
New England.'™ Howe speaks of them as “artful Villains who have
raised themselves to Consequence upon the Credulity of the Multi-
tude. . . 7' But he closes by expressing the belief that the public
will soon see through the wickedness of these “public Vultures™ and
return to their former, and happy, allegiance.""

The Continental Currency

Attacks on the weakness of the continental currency were another
feature of all Lovalist newssheets. For some apparently inexplainable
reason these occur quite frequently in The Newport Gazette during
the first six months of its existence, and then abruptly cease, never to
reappear. In the very first issue of this paper there is a reprint from
New York which points out the weakness of the rebel currency, and
remarks that Connecticut farmers have resolutely refused to take it
in pavment, making barter the only means of carrying on trade.""
In March, John Howe reports that even the “hottest among the
Rebels™ refuse the “Paste board Dollars of the Congress.” """

One favorite accusation of the Whigs against the Tories of this
period was that they counterfeited the State currencies in order to
lower their value and thus weaken the Whig morale."™ In the light
of this common attack upon Tory counterfeiters, it is interesting, even
if rather confusing, to read in the Gazette of April 17, 1777, in a re-
print from a New York paper of the last day of March, that the
Whigs have been counterfeiting their own currency, in order to raise
its value."™ This was the reprint:'"

In order. as 'tis supposed, to increase the Credit of the Continental
Currency, a vast Number of Paper Dollars, Counterfeited in a very
mastcrl\ Manner, have been thrown into Circulation in the various
Colonies, within the Course of last Fall and Winter. Many Reams
have been brought over by Merchants and others, and distributed
for that Purpose.

The effort was, probably, to further discredit the currency, and make
even ardent Whigs fearsome of taking it at face value. The argu-
ment, however, does not seem very logical.

Wilbid., May 28, 1778, 1100 bid,, January 16, 1777,
108 bid. 11 1bid,, March 6, 1777.
109 hid.

"2For one example, among many, take the case of the Exeter, New Hampshire
printer, Robert Luist Fowle,
HWiNewport Gazette, April 17, 1777, WAl bed.
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A wecek later John Howe reprints the report of a special town
meeting held in Boston on March 31st, at which it had been pro-
posed to publish the names of all people trying to discredit the cur-
rency.'" The editor prefaces it with this statement: “The following
shews [sic] the Efforts that a set of Rogues are trying, to give an
Appearance of Value to a Currency which hath no intrinsic Worth,
and which in a few Months more will sink with its Authors into
Destruction.” " On July 3d there is printed the statement that the
farmers everywhere are refusing to take the currency. It goes on to
assert that farmers will keep their produce rather than sell for such
worthless money."'?

The last reference to the worthlessness of the rebel currency pub-
lished in The Newport Gazette was on the seventeenth of July,
1777.""% Editor Howe prefaced a reprint from a Boston paper deal-
ing with the urgent need for remedying the currency situation, with
the following remarks: """

The following Piece, which is extracted from a Boston Paper of
June the 16th is a sufficient Proof of the miserable Situation the
deluded Wretches are in, who yet continue to sutfer themselves to be
duped by a Set of Men, who appear to be satisfied with nothing, but
the Miscry of the whole Continent. Their Paper, they see, will no
longer answer the Purposes of Money: for they frankly qa\ “The
soldier cannot subsist, nor will he engage [enlist], if his W ages w ill not
now purchase one Quarter so much as formerly.” — How long Men

in these Circumstances, can continue their ()pposttlon to a powerlul
Army, we submit to the Consideration of our Readers.

British War News

As with all newspapers during the war vears, regardless of political
complexion, The Newport Gazette devoted considerable space to
British war news, Such reports fall into one or more of three classes.
In the first place, there are the copies of official reports and letters
from the various British commanders to their superiors. Such for
example as a report from Lord Howe on the activities of the Navy,'™"
or letters from Burgoyne concerning his surrender.'! Secondly, and
much more numerous, are the unofficial reports of battles and skir-
mishes, many of them rather vague and frequently contradicted in

UsThid., April 24, 1777. 1187 bid.
1161 hid, 1200 bid., March 26, 1778.
117 bid.; Julv 3, 1777, 1217 bid., April 2, 1778,

WSIbid., July 17, 1777,
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the next issue. Such is the report published on October 30th, that
Burgoyne had killed 800 rebels in a single day’s battle, and was in
Albany, a report that had arrived by way of Quebec and Halifax."**
Yet a third class is made up of the official proclamations of the various
British commanders. With the exception of a tendency to give more
publicity to British victories than to their defeats, there is no evidence
that John Howe attempted to use this military information as propa-
ganda. The frequent and probably fictitious accounts of the flight of
large groups of rebel troops away from small detachments of the
British, so conspicuous in other Tory newssheets, seem to have been
totally absent from the Gazette. There are the same types of news in
regard to the Colonial army, all without any editorial comment,
showing no evidence of propaganda in this connection.

London News

One effect of the war on American journalism was to extend the
area from which the newspapers drew their foreign news. Yet dur-
ing the war itself, the effect on the Loyalist press was exactly the
opposite. Seldom does an issue of any one of these various papers
contain foreign news which has not come by way of London, regard-
less of its original source. The news which reached the various Tory
editors through the London papers which they received at greatly
varying intervals ran the full range of journalism as it was then
known. Essays, editorials, news items, ‘“letters,”” anecdotes and
numerous other forms of expression were available for the editors in
this country to choose from. It is only natural that items bearing on
the war, its conduct or its changing relationships, should be most
frequently chosen for reprinting. Of all of these “London news”
there are three types most common, and most important to a study
of the Lovalist press and the Revolution. Some items have to do with
the morale in the Mother Country. A second class deals with the
need for an energetic attempt to put down the rebellion, together
with evidences of such conduct. A third group concerns foreign
relations and the management of the war.

On November 6, 1777, John Howe reprints from an English paper
of August 23d an account of the great resentment which the Protes-
tant inhabitants of Dublin felt “at the insults they have latelv ex-

122N ew port Gazette, October 30, 1777.
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perienced from the Americans.” '™ In the following February the
Gazette takes from a New York paper of the 14th a letter written
in London in December, telling of the first feeling of despondency
and discouragement upon hearing of Burgoyne's surrender, which
had been followed by a reawakening of optimism and determina-
“tion.™ Again in April John Howe reprints an extract which de-
mands that Britons stop being disheartened over Burgovne's defeat,
and make a new effort to subjugate the ungrateful rebels.”™™ On
May 14th the Gazette's editor devotes the entire first page and a
part of the second to an article from London telling how indignation
aroused at the defeat of Burgovne has caused a wave of enthusiasm
to sweep through Scotland, with large numbers of volunteers com-
ing forward.'**

In the spring and early summer of 1777, much of the London
news has to do with the outfitting and embarking of new troops for
the war in America.'*® Later, in November, John Howe selects for
his entire front page and a part of the back page an article which
had first appeared in a London paper. This set forth the terms which
England should give the colonies after their subjection.’® A week
later there is an essay, perhaps aimed at the minority in Parliament,
pointing out that the war is necessary, since the rebellion was pre-
meditated, at least on the part of New England, and must be put
down." Again in the following May, an “address” by “Marcellus”
to the people of Great Britain, attacks Burke and demands that the
rebellion be put down.'™ Late that fall, after the French Alliance
has brought a threat to the security of the English West Indies, a
London news item reported that every seacoast town in America
must be laid waste, and all of the troops sent to the West Indies.'

The West Indies were an important link in much of the neutral
trade which was carried on, and which was vitally necessary to the
United States. It was largely because of this neutral trade that
England finally became involved in a controversy with Holland.
On September 11, 1777, John Howe chose for his paper a camplaint

V84 bid,, November 6, 1777. 1257 bid., April 9, 1778,

1241 hid,, February 19, 1778. 1267hid., May 14, 1778.

127For example, Newport Gazette, May 1, 1777 Ibid., June 12, 1777,

128N ewport Gazette, November 20, 1777. 1807 bid., May 28, 1778,

1281 bhid., November 27, 1777,

1M hid., October 29, 1778, This is especially interesting in terms of the relative
value of mainland and island colonivs which it indicates.
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which had been sent to the Dutch in regard to their trade with the
rebels, and also the answer which was received.'™ Over a year later,
from an English paper of August 8th, the editor of the Gazette copied
a news item which complained of the effort of French and Ameri-
can agents to persuade British soldiers to desert and enlist in their
armies."™ At two different times during the life of The Newport
Gazette there were reprints in regard to the hiring of more foreign
mercenaries by England: once it was Hessians,"** and another time
it was reported that arrangements had been made for 25,000 Rus-
sian troops.'*

Loyalist Troops

In The Newport Gazette. as in all of the papers printed by Loyal-
ists, there are calls for enlistment in Tory regiments. During the
winter and spring of 1777, there are three different calls for such
troops in the pages of John Howe's paper. On January 30th he
announces that volunteers are wanted for a “Tory Brigade™ to serve
for “three Years, or during the Rebellion. . . "' On March 20th
his readers are informed that enlistments are being received for a
Tory regiment to be known as the “Regiment of LOYAL RHODE-
ISLANDERS.” ™" Four weeks later another regiment is being
formed, this time the “Loval New-Englanders.” '

Satire

Satire, aimed at the rebels, is far from being absent in this news-
paper printed and edited by John Howe. On February 6, 1777, he
chose from a New York paper of the 27th of January, the following
satire on the rebel troops north of New York City: "™

Mr. Heath of Roxbury[,| Butcher, has brought a Drove of Lean

Cattle to browse in West Chester County, during the Winter. Colonel

Rogers, who claims a prior Right to the Woods, has pounded many

of them. Mr, Heath's Loss, it is thought, will be very great, as most

of them have got a Notion, of strolling Home wards.

On March 20th the readers of the Gazette may have been amused
by an anecdote which their editor had taken from the Nova Scotia

132N ewport Gazette, September 11, 1777, Wt bid,, January 30, 1777.
1330 bid., October 29, 1778, 1971bid., March 20, 1777.
Vil bid., June 26, 1777, 188Thid., April 17, 1777.

1357 bid.. February 5, 1778. Vi bid., February b, 1777.
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Gazette of January 14th."" This related the story of a suspected
Tory who was taken before a Committee in one of the rebel colonies
and questioned at some length about his activities."*" Finally the
Chairman said, “We don’t want to know ‘bout them things we
want to know wether [sic] you are a WHIG or . . . a TORY. . .”
After several refusals to state his apinions, the suspect finally replied
that “his Head was a WHIG, his Heart was a TORY, and his A-—¢
a Committeeman,” '**

Five weeks later there are several articles ridiculing the Congress,
and the following reflection on rebel courage:'**

By a Gentleman just escaped [rom the Rebels, we have the follow-
ing ‘Anecdote: — One Evening last Week as a Number of Negro
Wenches, with red Cloaks, were attending the Funeral of a departed
Sister at West-Chester, in the Vicinity of a Rebel Encampment, they
were perceived by the advanced Guard, who gave the Alarm that a
Party of the Enemy were advancing with a great Gun in Front; which
mntelligence put the whole Army to Flight. rather choosing to leave
every Thing behind than risk an Engagement.

In the last issue of this year, 1777, Editor Howe tells of the Assembly
of Massachusetts voting to give General Stark, who commanded
their militia at Bennington, *“a Suit of Cloathes [sic] and a Piece of
Linen,” and adds the comment: “What mighty Actions will not
such great Rewards prompt Men to perform.”'™* In the following
March, John Howe reprints from the New-York Gazette a Proc-
lamation by “Beelsebub, R.” which likens the rebel leaders to the
rulers of Hades,'*®

From the Rebel Press

All of the Loyalist papers have frequent reprints from the rebel
newssheets. Sometimes such reprints in the Gazette appear to be
“filler,” with no relation at all to the controversy; at other times
they have some direct relationship to the quarrel. Among the latter
are two kinds of reprints, those which actually reflect on some phase
of the rebel cause, and others which either glorify the rebel cause, or,
stranger vet, attack the Lovalists. The Newport Gazette is con-
spicuously free from reprints of the latter class, possible evidence that
John Howe was more careful in hisselection. Among the “logical™

Vi bid,. March 20, 1777, 1437bid., April 24, 1777.

141 by, 4L bid., December 26, 1777
142 hid, Wi fhid,, March 12, 1778,
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from the Lovalist standpoint-—reprints are those which will be men-
tioned in the next three paragraphs.

On July 24, 1777, the Gazette reprints a long letter written by
Washington to Sir William Howe on the 20th of June, dealing with
the exchange of prisoners."*" Washington asserts that he has had no
part in the unfortunate treatment of certain British officers held
prisoner by the Americans, and that he has done all in his power to
have them treated more humanely.”*” On August 7th the editor
reprints, from a Boston paper, an article by Marcus Brutus con-
demning the cowardice of the Americans in leaving Ticonderoga
without a struggle.™® A week later there are several reprints dealing
with various attempts to stop desertion from the colonial army."**

On the 21st, Howe reprints the exhortation of a Boston *Deacon”
to aid the mlomal cause since it was God’s cause and He would
surely guide the colonies to victory.'™ The reprint is prefaced
by the following comment on the introduction of religion into the
controversy : 1!

The following Composition of Blasphemy and Absurdity, is taken
from a Boston Paper of the | 1th instant — It is really surprising that
any Number of Men should have their Understanding so blinded as
to receive it with Approbation and Applause. The canting Deacon
who wrote it, would stand appall'd should he hear a Volley of un-
meaning Oaths utter’d by a thoughtless Fellow who made no Pre-
tensions to Religion: but without any Scruple [he] can blaspheme his

Maker by . . . Words which breath’d the Peace and Philanthropy of
the Gospel t() excite to Murder, Cruelty and Rebellion.

On September 4th, the readers of T'he Newport Gazette are given
the records of the Congress in regard to the recall of Generals St.
Clair, Schuyler and Poor."* There are no further examples of this
intelligent selection of rebel items until the following March, when
the much discussed Act of Congress makmqF all enlistments and drafts
permanent for the duration of the war is reprinted.’™ Two months
later there is a reprint of the draft law passed by Massachusetts on
April 17th.” On May 28th Howe reprints, from a Boston paper,
a letter in which the writer protests the neglect of the army, and
mentions especially their great lack of supplies.'™™ Another Boston

T4 hid., July 24, 1777. 15917 bid,

1471 hid. 1527 bid., September 4, 1777,
V5 hid., August 7, 1777, 1531 bid., March 19, 1778.
Vi hed.. August | ‘r 1777, 194 hid., May 21, 1778.
Talfbid., August 21, 1777, 1551 bid., May 28, 1778.
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item in the same issue of the Gazette deals with the extortionate prices
charged by “countrymen™ for the “Necessaries of Life,” and with
the great hardships which the people of Boston are suffering as a
result.'™

All of the items mentioned in the last three paragraphs reflect in
some way upon the rebel management of the war, and whether
consciously or unconsciously selected they must have had some effect
on the people who read them, especially on that large class of Ameri-
cans who wavered with the changing tide of victory.

* * *

The Newport Gazette was not the greatest nor the most enduring
of the Tory newspapers. Yet it was cdited with considerable skill
and intelligence and was the only Tory sheet in New England during
its lifetime. No one could hope to assess the importance of the Tory
Press to the British war effort without a knowledge of John Howe
and his work.

156 bid.

A QUERY CONCERNING
THE OLD STONE MILL AT NEWPORT

In July 1667 — the General Assembly ordered beacons to be set
up at Wanomitonimo Hill, Sachuest Rocks, Newport, Mill Hill,
Portsmouth: Pettaquamscutt and Watch Hills, King's County: and
Moshawsett Hill, Providence.

( Rhode Island Colony Records, 1646-1669, Volume !, page 293,)

In July 1762 — the Governor and Council ordered Lt. Colonel
Samuel Freebody and Lieut. Nathaniel Mumford to wait on Mr.
John Banister and desire liberty to build a watch tower upon his
stone mill.

{Governor and Council, 1755-1772, page 19.)

Query— Did it take the colonists nearly one hundred years to
find out that the Stone Mill was a suitable place for a watch tower
or was it in existence in 16677

In June 1742, when John and Hermione (Pelham ) Banister were
cutting the entail on the estate left to Hermione by her father
Edward Pelham, they cited one piece of real estate as being — “one
Lott of Land containing Eight Acres be the same more or less with
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one large Edifice or Building and an old Stone Wind Mill theron
standing with the appurtenances in Newport aforesaid.”
(Fines and Forfeitures, 1727-1750, page 260, )

MARY T. QUINN

Rhode Island State Archives, April 29, 1954

THE 133d ANNUAL MEETING

Tue 1330 Axxvar Meerine (postponed | of The Rhode Island
Historical Society was held September 29, 1954, at John Brown
House. President M. Randolph Flather called the mecting to order
at 7:30 P. M.

The Secretary read the call of the meeting and declared a quorum
to be present. The minutes of the preceding stated mecting and the
adjourned annual meeting were read and approved.

Mr. Harold Kelly, Treasurer, reported an operating surplus for
the vear ending Tune 30, 1954, of $301.35: our total assets at that
time were $277.393.26 and our net worth $223.477.51.

The Membership Committee’s report showed a total of 1,585
members at the end of our fiscal year.

The Lecture Committee reported the total attendance at meet-
ings of all organizations held at John Brown House during the year
was 1,857.

The Publication Committee stated that the Society had published
four isues of Rhode Island History during the vear and recom-
mended that an index to the quarterly ought soon to be published
to cover the vears since 1946, when the last index was printed.

The report of the Grounds and Buildings Committee told of
expenditures of $4.522.62 during the year, largely for maintenance
of the grounds and trees. Although slightly more than $1.500. was
spent on the house, no major projects were undertaken on the
building.

As the members stood in respect, Mrs, Axel A. Christensen read
the report of the Committee on Necrology.

The Audit Committee reported that the financial statements and
records of the Society for the vear ending June 30, 1954, had been
examined and found to be in good order.

Mr. Clarkson A. Collins, m, then read his report as Librarian. He
told of the recent gift to the Society by the Rhode Island Jewish Ter-
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centenary Committee of two books by Roger Williams, and of the
recent acquisition of the entire records of the Blackstone Mill. He
also described a gift of several pieces of furniture which once belonged
to John Brown.

Mr. Clifford P. Monahon then presented his annual report as
Director of the Society. Mr. Monahon emphasized the responsibility
of the Society “to sce to it that the people of Rhode Island appreciate
our historical heritage.”

Mr. Monahon described some of the highlights of the past vear,
mentioning in particular the publication, in conjunction with the
Rhode Island Board of Education and the Rhode Island Develop-
ment Council, of Mr. Earl C. Tanner’s Rhode Island. a Brief History.
and the meeting here and in Newport last fall of the National Trust
for Historic Preservation.

The Director told something of the upkeep of John Brown House
last vear and described the work done in the attic through a grant
from The Rhode Island Foundation. He went on to list several of
the needs of the Society foremost among which are the need of
increased endowment and more librarv space.

In the President’s address, Mr. Flather reported that the Society
had had a successful vear, but urged that we not be content with the
status quo, but “look forward to growing even more in service to
our members and as an influence in the State.” Among the require-
ments of the Society which he noted in particular were the pressing
need for a new library building and the ever present need of new
members. Mr. Flather went on to report on the appointment last
fall of Mr. Clifford P. Monahon as Director, and Mr. Clarkson A.
Collins, mr as Librarian of the Society.

Mr. Frederick Lippitt, chairman, then read the report of the
Nominating Committce.

There being no further nomination and upon motion, the nomin-
ations were closed, and the Secretary instructed to cast one ballot
for the slate as read. The new officers being duly elected, Mr. George
L. Miner, President, then took over the chair,

Mr. Miner said a few words of appreciation and the meeting

adjourned at 8:15 P. M,
PREnRECES dal Respectfully submitted,

Ivory LITTLEFIELD, JR.
Secretary

1955 ] Report of the Treasurer 23

THE RHODLE ISLAND HISTORICAL SOCIETY
STATEMENT OoF OPERATING RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

For 12 Months Ending June 30, 1954

INCOME
Dues £8,678.00
Securities Income: Dividends §6,544.12
Interest 1L170.00 7,714.12
Interest on Bank Deposits 56.83
John Brown House Fund Income 190.06
Statr of Rhode Island Appropriation 8,500.00
City of Providence 1,000.00
Contributions: General 1,B69.75
Corporate 960.00
Special 450.00
Patriotic Socicties 300.00
Sale of Publications, Books, rte. 389.28
Miscellaneous Income 30.16 $30,138.20
EXPENSES
Salaries $17,15L.50
Social Security Taxes 224.56
Director’s Discretionary Fund 288.05
Supplies 270.07
Telephone 285.50
Membership Printing 42238
Library Books, Periodicals, ctc. 985.23
Museum 179.88
Lectures, Printing and Entertainment 402,02
Publications, Printing and Postage 2,760,532
Heat, Light, and Housckeeping 2,250.39
Maintenance of Grounds £2.039.11
Maintenance of Buildings 1,585.51 4,522,652
Insurance 1461
Miscellancous Expense 170.52 29.836.65
OPERATING SURPLUS §301.55
BAarance SHEET — June 30, 1954
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Cash T $ 7,165.75  John Brown House Fund Reserve §  7,955.00
Special Funds : 285146 Life Membership Reserve 3,000.00
Investments P 159,330.46  John Brown Chariot Restoration
John Brown House Fund 7,955.00 Reserve 214,43
Real Estate, Furniture Library Book Fund Reserve 714.06
and Fixtures 30,006.00  Publication Fund Reserve 929.71
Books and Manuscripts 50,000.00  “Wilbour Endowment” 41,102.41
Accounts Recrivable 84.5%7  Net Worth 225,477.75
$277,393.26 $277,393.26

Harorn H. Kevrvy, Treasurer
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OFFICERS

elected at the Annual Meeting, September 29, 1954

George L. Mincer presudent
Bruce M. Bigrlow, Albert E. Lownes vice presidents
Frank L. Hinckley, Jr. secretary

Douglas W, Franchot
Harold H. Kelly
Kenneth N. Hill

MessersHir CoMMITTEE

LeBaron C, Anthony, chatrman
Edmund J. Canning

Miss Dorothy D. Dunlop
Townes M. Harns, Jr.

Charles R. Makepeace, Jr.

Lisrary CoMMiTTEE

Mrs, Clifford K. Rathbone, chatrman
Knight Edwards

Robert L. Knight, Jr.

Paul C. Nicholson, Jr.

Bradford F. Swan

Lecture COMMITTEE

Ivory Littlefield, Jr., chatrman
William P, Buffum, Jr.

Miss Nancy A, Dyer

James L. Hanley

Mis. Albert Harkness

Puaticarion CoMMITTEE

Paul C. Nicholson, chairman
Houghton P. Metcalf, Jr.
Francis H. Chalee, M.,
Clarence H, Philbrick
Lawrence C. Wroth

assistant secretary
freasurer

assisiant treasurer

Grouxps axp Brinmxas
Robert H. 1. Goddard, Jr., chairman
Conrad E. Green
Mrs. William G. Roclker
Norman B. Smith
John €. B. Washbum

CoMMITTEE o8 NECROLOGY
Benjamin L. Cook, Jr., chairman
Mrs, Axel A, Christensen
Mrs, Charles E. Hurdis
(. Andrews Moriarty
Mrs. George C. Scott

Fixasce ComyiTreE
Harry B. Freeman, chainman
William W_ White
Bavard Ewing
S. Foster Hunt
Charles B, Rockwell

Avrmr COMMITTEE

Henry B. Cross, chatrman
F. Morris Cochran e
Fred Piggott

The Executive Committee 1s composed of the officers: chairmen
of committees; Richard LeBaron Bowen, Charles B, Mackinney,
and Addison P. Munror, menibers at large ; Dr. Grace M. Sherwood
and the director ol the Society, ex officio.

BLOCK ISLAND CEMETERY RECORDS
copied and arranged by
Mis. Heren Winsrow MansyieELD

[continued from October, 1954, v. 13, no. 4, inside back cover]

ROSE

Annie L.. daughter of Elihu W, and Jane D. Rose, horn Aug. 21.
1879: died Jan. 5, 1890.

Lydia. wife of Erastus Rose and daughter of Richard and Susanna
‘Steadman, died May 20, 1871, ae. 30 yrs., 2 mos., 8 da.

Ezckiel Rose, died Nov. 1, 1807, in 72nd yr. of his ae.

Warren, son of Edgar E. and Annie ]. Rose, died Nov. 18. 1900,
ae. 7 yrs., 7 mos.

Frederick Rose, died Apr. 28, 1863, ae. 69 yrs., 1 mo., 2 _dn._
Welthy Rose, wife of Frederick Rose, died May 26, 1852, in 56th yr.

Frederick A. Rose, 1843—1911.
Sarah Frances Rose, 1850—1875.
Effic Campbell Rose, 1866—

George Rose, died Sept. 17, 1854, ac. 39 yrs., 11 mos., 24 da.
Sophronia L. Rose, wife of George Rose, died Sept. 22, 1854, ac.
39 yrs.. 1 mo., 18 da.

Memory of my father Gideon Rose, Sept. 17, 1854, ae. 39 yrs.
11 mos.. 24 da.

Gideon Rose, who died Dec. 12, 1862, ac. 68 yrs., 9 mos., 12 da.
Matilda. wife of Gideon Rose. died June 7, 1889, ae. 90 yrs., 13 da.

Capt. George A. Rose, died Feb. 18, 1880, ac. 3 yrs., 11 mos.

Herbert M. Rose. Apr. 29, 1885—Oct, 23, 1912,
Mary Frances, his wife, Mar. 23, 1881.

James Rose, died Dec. 7, 1791, in 60th yr. (Slate Stone) )

In memory of Hannah, wife of Mr. James Rose, who departed this
life Dec. 1, 1791, in 60th yr, She was a kind wife, a tender parent
and beloved by all her acquaintances,

James E. Rose, 18411918,

His wife, Armenia B, Rose, 18451929,

Armenia B., daughter of James E. and Armenia B, Rose, died May
30. 1885, ae, 6 mos., 25 da.

25
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Rosk

Jeremiah C. Rose, Sept. 15, 1839—Dec, 22, 1917,
Jane F., his wife, Nov. 19, 1840—Sept. 19, 1931,

John Rose, 17651841,
Margaret Rose, 17621822,

John M. Rose, died May 27, 1892, ae. 71 yrs.
Eunice, wile nt]o}m M. Rmt died Apr. 25, 1889, ae. 61 yrs.. 21 da.

Capt. John E. Rose, Sept. 6, 1845—Sept. 6, 1894.
His wife, Amanda L. Rose, July 2, 1852 Feb. 5, 1906.

Henry, son of John and Catherine Rose, born Feb. 13, 1857 died
Nov, 29, 1899,

Joscph Rose, died May 2, 1823, ae. 33 yrs., 5 mos.
Tamer R. R(m consort of Joseph L. Rose, died Mar. 5, 1821, in
20th yr.

Joseph N. Rose, Dee. 15, 1858—Feh. 15, 1940.

Joshua Rose, died Nov. 11, 1883, ae. 60 yrs., 11 mos.

Nancy T., wife of Joshua Rose, died July 25, 1862, ac. 44-6-15.

Franklin R. ,son of Joshua and Nancy T. Rose, born at New Shore-
ham, Se pt 10, 1852: died at Providence, R. L., June 17, 1870,
in 18th yr.

Mary E., eldest daughter of Joshua and Nancy Rose, died Dec. 12,
1885, in 41st yr,

Lemuel B. Rose, died Oct. 24, 1865, ae. 46 vrs.

Catherine D. Rose, died Sept. 23, 1903, ae. 84 yrs.

Ida G., daughter of Lemuel B. and Catherine D. Rose, died Dec.
15, 1857, ae. 2 mos., 10 da.

Littlefield Rose, died May 10, 1874, ae. 82 yrs., 3 mos., 20 da.

Abby, wife of Littlefield Rose, died Oct. 29,1865, ae. 66 vrs., 3 mos.,
2 da.

William Crook, son of Littlefield Rose, died in 1838.

Martin W. Rose, died Apr. 6, 1849, ac. 39 yrs., 9 mos.

Martin L. Rose, Jan. 6, 1858 [um 23, 1925.
His wife, Annie Peckham, Feb. 7, 1871—Jan. 7. 1936.
Their son, Edward B. Rose, Dee. 5, 1895,

Moses Rose, died Mae, 6, 1821, in 50th yr.
Moses D. Rose, died Sept. 1, 1838, in 20th yr.
Moses Rose died Mar. 18, 1891, in 58th yr.
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Oliver C. Rose, 1880—1928.
His wife, Gertrude E. Dodge, 18851948,

Oliver A. Rose, 1882—1939.
His wife, Albertine Dorian Rose, 1887,

Percival Rose, Sept. 20, 1836—July 14, 1917.

Margaret A., wife of Percival Rose, who departed this life July 10,
1863, ae. 24 yrs., 9 mos., 18 da.

Cora B., only child of Percival and Margaret A. Rose, died Aug.
13, 1863, ac. 11 mos., 13 da.

Samuel W. Rose, died June 29, 1861, ac. 64 yrs.
Rmma Rose, wife of Samuel W. Rose, died May 11, 1839, ac. 56 \rs
Rohert R., son of Samuel W. and Rosina Dodge Rose, born Mar.
1832; died Jan. 27, 1912,

Samuel W. Rose, Jr., son of Samuel W. and Rozina Rose, died
June 13, 1868, ae. 38 yrs,, 1 mo., 12 da.

Sarah Maria, wife of Samucl W. Rose, born June 4, 1833; died
June 24, 1920,

Samuel M. Rose, Sr., born May 26, 1858, died Mar. 2]?‘ 1935.

Ella G. Rose, his wife, born Mar. 1, 1858: died Aug. 2, 1937

Samuel M. Rose, Jr., born June 14, 1884, dicd Sept. 11 1‘128

Eugene L. Rose, born Nov. 14, 1886.

Ella Mana. infant daughter of Samuel M. and Ella G. Rose, born
Jan. 9, 1883.

Capt. Thomas Rose, June 5, 1826—May 6, 1867.

Matilda Rose, his wife, kpl 1, 1829—June 5, 1916.

Martin W.. son of Thomas and Matilda Rose, died Jan. 20, 1866,
ae. 76 yrs., 6 mos., 6 da.

Martin W., son of Thomas and Matilda Rose, died Jan. 10, 1885,
in 20th yr.

Mr. Tormut Rose, who died June 1, 1803, in 73rd yr. of ac,

Jane Rose, wife of Tormut Rose, who died Sept. 11, 1821, in
87th yr.

Mary L., wife of Tormut Rose, died Nov. 23, 1832, in 41st yr.

Maria, wife of William Rose, died Dec. 20, 1820, in 21st yr.

Capt. William M. Rose, died May 11, 1868, ae. 53 yrs., 5 mos.

Wealthy M., wife of Capt. William M. Rosc died Nov. 11, 1881,
ae. 63 \rs, 11 mos.

Elliot G., only son of William M. and Wealthy M. Rose, died
Mar. 3, 1830, ae. 2 yrs., 1| mo., 22 da.

Helen Marr, daughter of William M. and Wealthy M. Rose, July
2, 1843; died Dec. 25, 1850.
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Rose

Rowland L., son of William M. and Wealthy M. Rose, born Aug. 5,
1860: died Feb. 10, 1881.

William Rose, born Aug. 22, 1819, died Sept. 12, 1889,

Elizabeth M. Rose, wife of William Rose and daughter of Rev.
Enoch and Elizabeth Rose, died Dec. 28, 1895, ae. 80 yrs.

Sarah Elizabeth, daughter of William and Elizabeth M. Rose. who
died Sept. 22, 1835, ae. 6 yrs., 9 mos.

William M. Rose, Feb. 19, 1838 —Nov. 4, 1897.
Sarah A. Rosc, his wife, Nov. 13, 1842—May 11, 1909.

William M. Rose, Jan. 7, 1856-—July 14, 1918.

His wife, Evelyn A. Rose, May 3, 1875—Apr. 13, 1926,

Mother Ada R.., wife of William M. Rose, born Jan. 5, 1857: died
Nov. 26, 1893,

Emma J., daughter of William M. and Ada R. Rose. born Aug. 20,
1886; died May 25, 1887.

Wealthy M. Rose, born July 1. 1900: died Scpt. 26. 1901.

Infant child, born and died Nov. 4, 1902.

Children of William M. and Evelyn M. Rose.

s Rose died 1844 in 72

ROUNDTREE

Dorothy B. Roundtree, Dec. 1. 1936—Dec. 26, 1936. (on Alton
Mott stone)

RUTLEDGE

John T. Rutledge, Jan. 14, 1877. (on Wm. P. Dodge stone)
His wife, Lydia M. Willis, June 17, 1879—June 15, 1940,

SANDS

Table Stone
Here lyeth interred the body of Cap'n. Edward Sands
who departed this life June ye 14, 1708, in ye 36th yr. of ae.

Edward Sands, Esq., died Oct. 21, 1778, ac. 66 yrs.

Having sustained several offices of public trust and discharged the
relative duties of life, with credit to his country and Honor to
himself. (Slate Stone)

Memory of Hannah, wife of Edward Sands, Esq., who died Jan,
18, A.D. 1760, in the 52nd yr. of her ae.

Edward Sands, who died Aug. 17, 1858, in 59th yr. of his ae,
Rosina R., wife of Edward Sands, died Jan. 21, 1880, in 76th vr.,
8 mos.
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James T. Sands, son of Edward and Rosina Sands, died Oct. 1,
1866, ae. 30 vrs.. 1 mo., 14 da.

Sacred to the memory of Capt. Edward Sands who made his exit
the 11th of Mar. 1820 in 72nd vr. of his ae.

Erected by William P. Sands.

Memory of Deborah, wife of Edward Sands, Esq., who died 11 of
Jan. 1817, ae. 66 yrs,

Table Stone
Here lyeth the body of Mr. James Sands, Senior, ae. 73 yrs., de-
parted this life Mar, 13, 1695,

James Tumer Sands who made his exit 15th Oct. 1818 in the 10th
vr. of his ae.

Memory of John Sands, Esq., who died Dec. 27, 1820, in 76th yr.
He held for more than 40 yrs. the office of Head Warden, Town
Treasurer and First Representative.

Elizabeth, wife of Mr. John Sands, who died Aug. 3, 1765, in 19th
vr. of her ae,

Stop Reader spend a mournful tear

upon the dust that slumbers here

and while you read the slate to me

think on the glass that runs for thee.

Memeory of Phebe Sands, wife of John Sands. Esq.: who died Mar.
27, 1848, in 93rd yr. of her ae.

John E. Sands, born May 25, 1783, died Apr. 23, 1855.
Nancy Paine, his wife, born Jan. 31, 1785: died Oct. 7, 1837.

John R. H. Sands, who died Aug. 7, 1843, in 57th vr. of ae.
Jane S. Sands, wife of John R. H. Sands, who died Oct. 7, 1840,
ae. 31 yrs.

Memory of Mrs. Francis M. Sands, the amiable and much beloved
consort of Mr. Nathaniel G. Sands. who was born Apr. 10, 1790,
and died Oct. 2, 1806, in 28th yr.

Sacred to the memory of Col. Ray Sands, whe died Feb. 1, 1808,
ae; 71 yrs.

He was who looked up us in the defense of his country in the hour
of difficulty and obtained liberty,

Sacred to the memory of Ann Sands, wife of Col. Ray Sands and
daughter of Jeremiah Niles of So. Kingstown, who died Mar. 23,
1827, in 84th yr. of ae.

Sacred to the memory of Ray Sands, Esq., who died Mar. 21, 1848,
in 73rd yr. of his ac,
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Dea. Robert T. Sands, Mar, 6, 1823—Apr. 5, 1900,
Seraphine A. Sands, his wife, Mar. 9, 1827—Nov. 24, 1862,
William E., their son, May 12, 1852—Mar. 29, 1907.

Simon Ray Sands, born Dec. 12, 1815—April 19, 1889,

Mary Ann Gorton, wife of Simon Ray Sands, died Dec. 5, 1866,
ac, 4+ yrs., 1 mo., 19 da.

Tamer Rose Sands, wife of Simon Ray Sands, born Nov. 18, 1836:
died Feb. 8, 1913,

Infant son of 8. Ray and Tamer R. Sands. born and died June 18,
1871.

Simon Ray Sands, U. S. Coast Guard. World War [ & 11, May 3,
1875— !
His wife, Frances Perry Sands, Dec. 31, 1877 —

Memory of Treadwell Sands, died Jan. 7. 1838, ac. 75 yrs.
Memory of Phebe, amiable consort of Treadwell Sands. who died
Mar. 27, A.D. 1803, in ye 39th yr. of her ae.

William P. Sands. Esq.. who died Dec. 18, 1846, in 73rd vr.

Catherine, wife of William P. Sands, who died July 27, 1834, in
32nd vyr.

Phebe Ray, daughter of Wm. Pitt and Catherine, his wife, died
Apr. 19, 1813, ae. 5 vrs.

Turner Sands died Oct. 13, 1818, in 10th yr.

William C. Sands, Mar, 17, 1841—Jan. 10, 1920.
Joanna H. Sands, his wife, Apr. 22, 1846—Aug. 28, 1919,

SHAW

Beatrice Thomas Shaw, 1904—1935.

SHEFFIELD

Arthur N. Sheffield, Aug. 2, 1868— June 25, 1935,

His wife, Hattie Willis, July 9, 1869—]June 3, 1936,
Children

Corredon E., Apr. 22, 1891—July 1, 1891,

Edna A, -

Mary A,

Chauncey ., Mar, 11, 1904—July 30, 1905.

Corridon E., daughter of Arthur N, and Hattie A. Sheffield, born
Apr. 22, 1891 : died July 4, 1891.

Chauncey H., son of Arthur N. and Hattie A. Shefficld, Mar. 11,
1904 July 30, 1905,

Sanns Memory of Mr. Edmund Sheffield, who died Apr. 1. 1815, in 49th

yrI.
Memory of Mercy Sheffield, the amiable consort of Edmund Shef-
field, who departed this life Apr. 3, 1850, in 82nd yr.

Lucy Ann, wife of Edmund Sheffield and daughter of Peleg C. and
Lucy P. Champlin, died Apr. 21, 1866 in 36th year.

Homer Augustus Sheffield, 1862—1933. (on William Littlefield
stone)

His wife, Rose Idelle Littleficld.

Nettie Littlefield, wife of Homer Shefficld, born Nov. 9, 1866: died
Mar. 29, 1893.

Merwin C.. infant son of Homer C. and Nettic L. Sheffield, born
Dec. 2, 1892; died Aug. 29, 1893.

James, son of Jeremiah and Mary Shefficld, died Sept. 8, 1736,
ae. 2 yrs., 6 mos.

John G. Sheffield, born Apr. 26, 1819, died June 21, 1886.

Lucinda Ward, wife of John G. Sheffield, born Feb. 27, 1820: died
May 26, 1848.

Corridon C., wife of John G. Shefficld, born Oct. 23, 1826: died
Apr. 25, 1884.

Lucinda Ward, wife of John G. Shefficld. who died May 26, 1848,
in 28th yr.

Alice Lucinda Sheffield, born Mar. 4. 1854—died Mar. 4, 1877,
daughter of John G. and Corridon C. Shefficld.

Lila T. Sheffield, born Apr. 16, 1860, died May 7, 1885, daughter
of John G. and Corridon Shefficld.

Mary Ann, daughter of John G. and Corridon Payne Sheflield,
Jan. 5, 1851—July 26, 1902; marricd Jan. 24, 1875, Archibald
Milliken; Dec. 7, 1884, marricd John Eugene Littlefield.

John G. Sheffield, Sept. 17, 1855 Sept. 1, 1929.

Annie Payne, wife of John G. Sheffield, Jr., and daughter of John
R. and Phebe C. Payne: born May 9, 1859, died Apr. 2, 1886.
Fannie E., wife of John G. Sheffield, born Aug. 9, 1861 ; dicd Nov.

30, 1899.
Sarah Frances, daughter of John G. and Fannie E. Sheffield, Nov.
26, 1894—Sept. 14, 1900,

Josiah Sheffield, died July 24, 1870, in 80th yr.

Sarah F., wife of Josiah Sheflield, died Nov. 9, 1865, in 73rd yr.

Edmund, son of Josiah Shefficld and Sarah F., died Oct. 8, 1825,
ae. 5 mos.

Lamson, son of Josiah Sheflicld and Sarah F.| died Aug. 12, 1825,
ac. 3 wks.
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SHEFFIELD
Mr. Nathaniel Shefficld who died Sept. 2, 1821, in 28th yr. of ae,
Mrs. Mary Ann Sheffield, wife of Mr. Nathanicl Shefficld, who
died Dec, 4, 1821, in 30th year of her ae.

SHERWOOD
William E. Sherwood, Sept. 6, 1888 June 16, 1942,

SLATE
Fred Slate, Rhode Island Ch. f. Bos'n Mate, U.S.N.F.F., Nov. 6,
1934,

SMITH
Albert W. Smith, 18601930,
Maria E.. his wife, 18681953,
Infant daughter, Feb. 6, 1896—Feb, 10, 1896,

Deborah J. Hayes, wife of Benjamin P. Smith, died Nov. 12, 1852,
ac. 19 yrs., 2 mos., 6 da.
Mary Eluabeth \\1fe of Benjamin Smith, 18371921,

Charles E. Smith, died Jan. 10, 1937, ae. 74 yrs.
Elizabeth McConnell, wife of Charles E. Smith, died Apr. 24, 1912,
ae. 44 yrs.

Earl A. Smith, 1886—1920.
His wife, Deborah AL, 1886—

Ezra C. Smith, born Dec. 4, 1852, died Mar. 5, 1897.
Ruth A., his wife, born July 7, 1857—1930.

G. Elwood Smith, 1835-—1928.
Mary M., his wife, 1857—1922.

Thomas C. Smith, son of George E. and Mary M. Smith, drown
Feb. 28, 1902, in 23rd yr.

John Smith, sen of George and Mary Smith, who died July 9, 1889,
ae. 19 yrs., 4 mos.

George R. Smith, Apr. 25, 1892,

Mary Chase Smith, wife of George R. Smith, Aug. 26,1891 —
July 14, 1912,

Elsic Redfern Ball, Feb. 8, 1892, Ist wife of Eugene Ball.

Capt. John W. Smith, Jan. 29, 1854—]Junc 19, 1918.

Bertha B. Sprague, Md\ 14, 1876.

Grace E., wife of John W. Smith and daughter of George and
Eunice Jelly, born Mar. 21, 1859, died June 28, 1882.

Joshua C. Smith, died Sept. 10, 1883 ae. 58 yrs., 7 mos., 7 da.

Elizabeth M., wife of Joshua C. Smith, died July 28, 1893, ae. 63
yrs., 4 mos., 5 da.

Desire Willis, daughter of Joshua C. and Elizabeth M. Smith, died
July 26, 1863, ae. 44 da.

Addie L,, daughter of Joshua C. and Elizabeth M. Smith, died
July 27, 1877, ae. 19 yrs., 9 mos.

Lewis E. Smith, 1887—1943.
His wife, Catherine A. Dickens. 1889—

R. Hollis Mitchell, 1907—
His wife. Stella C. Smith. 1907—

Mary T. Smith, born Kingstown, R. I.. died Oct. 29, 1883, in
72nd yr. of her ae.

SPRAGUE
Hannah, wife of Abel Sprague, died May 21. 1863, in 50th yr.
Alvin H. Sprague, 18381921,
Harriet L., his wife. 1862—1941,

Mary, wife of Alvin Sprague, died Nov. 7, 1887, ae. 42 yrs., 8 mos.,
24 da.

Amey E. Sprague, born Aug. 13, 1853, died Oct. 30, 1910,

Benjamin Spraguc, formerly a representative for the Town, who
died May 2, 1838, ac. 62 yrs.

Benjamin Sprague, Co. D. 12 R, R, Inf,

Channing Sprague, died May 11, 1921, ae. 50 yrs.
Her husband, Charles F. Sprague, born Apr. 14, 1853; died June
1,1884.

Edward P. Sprague, died Oct. 20, 1881, in 36th yr. of ae.

Armond F.. son of Elford L. and Mary A. Sprague, Aug. 11, 1899
June 27,1817,

Eli Sprague, Aug. 1, 1838—]an. 6, 1923.
Adelaide Sprague, his wife, Mar. .JO 1845—July 30, 1910,

Myrtle A. Sprague, 1871,

J. Rose Sprague, 1873—1939,
Erastus Sprague, Oct. 22, 1867.
Mary Ida Steadman, his wife, 1869—Dec, 5, 1934.

Estella Ball Sprague, May 3. 1864—Aug. 17. 1945. (beside Wm. S.
Ball stone)
[to be continued]



THE RHODE ISLAND HISTORICAL SOCIETY

NEw MEMBERS
September 28, 1954 — November 29, 1954

Mr. Garrett D. Byrnes Mr. Harry Freeman

Mrs. John M. Canavan Mr. Wendell G. Harris
Edgewood, R, 1. East Greenwich, R. 1L

Mr. and Mrs. John S. Chafee Mrs. Horace S. Kenney, Jr.

Mrs. Leroy Palmer Cox Miss Margaret L. McCoid
North Providence, R. 1. Mr. john (.. Nash

Mr. James Doak Mr. Henry A. Rickett
Eristaly Rl Riverside 15, R. L.

Mr. Arthur F. Fontaine Mr. William E. Sauter
Pawtucket, R. L. Barrington, R, 1.

Miss Frances A. Foster Mr. Tracy G. Thurber

Dr. and Mrs. Joseph B. Webber

LECTURES
January 12, 1955, Wednesday STATED MEETING 8:15 p.m.
Ezra Stiles
Epmuxo 8. Morcan, Professor of History, Brown University
February 13, 1955, Sunday 3:00 p.m.
At the Sign of the Bunch of Grapes

Leoxarn Jouwnson, Secretary of Gladding's

March 13, 1955, Sunday 3:00 p.m.
Early American Dyeing
Mgrs. G. LAURENCE SCHETKY
llustrated with plant material and dyed wool
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